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Business areas Schiphol Group

Business areas Schiphol Group

Aviation

Most
important
activities

Consumers

Real Estate

Alliances and
Participations

Planning, coordination,

Retail, parking,

Development,

Pantares

capacity management and

advertising, e-business

management and

Rotterdam Airport

information for aviation

and space rental

operation of investments

Eindhoven Airport

processes at Amsterdam

in Amsterdam

in real estate on and

Lelystad Airport

Schiphol

Schiphol’s terminal

around Amsterdam

JFKIAT

Schiphol and other

Brisbane Airport

airports

RONA

Total

4.4%

30.2%

6.4%

0.9%*

NLG 698 million

NLG 533 million

NLG 120 million

NLG 74 million

NLG 106 million

NLG 228 million

NLG 88 million

-/- NLG 7 million

NLG 2,380 million

NLG 754 million

NLG 1,367 million

NLG 261 million

NLG 377 million

NLG 91 million

NLG 152 million

NLG 17 million

operating
income

Operating
result

Average
fixed assets

Investments

Result of

NLG 147 million

revaluation of property
portfolio

RONA incl.

17.2%

result of revaluation
of property portfolio

*

In calculating the RONA (Return on Net Assets), results in participations were taken into account.
Financial fixed assets are included in the average fixed assets.

Schiphol Group – A Profile

Schiphol Group is an airport operator whose

been categorised in the Report of the Board of

primary activity is to create and develop

Management into four Business areas: Aviation,

AirportCities. The Group aims to develop into

Consumers, Real Estate, and Alliances &

a leading international airport operator.

Participations.

In addition to being an efficient multifunctional

Schiphol Group endeavours to create value for

transportation hub for air, rail and road, an

shareholders, while maintaining the interests

AirportCity is a location that offers 24-hour service

of all stakeholders. Its strategy focuses on

to visitors (passengers, staff and visitors) and

strengthening its international competitive

international companies located locally (airlines,

position, and includes further expansion of the

distribution companies, logistics companies,

AirportCity formula.

and service providers) by way of shops, catering
facilities, information and communications
technology (ICT), business units, conference rooms,
and recreational facilities.
Schiphol Group’s showpiece is Amsterdam Airport
Schiphol, where development and actualisation
of the AirportCity formula are most advanced.
The experience and expertise acquired here is used
to apply the formula to other international airports.
Besides Amsterdam Airport Schiphol, Schiphol
Group operates Rotterdam Airport, owns Lelystad
Airport and holds 51% of the shares in Eindhoven
Airport. The Group is also active internationally,
including Terminal 4 at John F. Kennedy Airport
in New York and Brisbane Airport in Australia.
The Group employs almost 2,000 people.
In 2000, Schiphol Group generated a turnover of
NLG 1.4 billion and a net profit of NLG 317 million.
Approximately half of the net turnover was
acquired through airport charges. Other income
was acquired from commercial activities, real
estate, and other interests. These activities have
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Key figures
(in NLG million, unless stated otherwise)
For comparison, previous years’ figures have been adjusted to the current accounting policies.
For amounts in euro see p. 60-65.

2000

1999

1998

1997

1996

1,404

1,268

1,219

1,110

982

Operating profit

415

392

399

322

285

Net profit

317

280

348

283

210

Amortisation and depreciation

228

173

176

170

157

554

640

624

522

419

Shareholders’ equity

3,402

3,002

2,696

2,379

2,104

Total assets

5,446

4,868

4,410

3,914

3,547

Return on average equity

9.9

9.8

13.7

12.6

10.6

ROCE

9.0

9.4

10.5

9.4

9.1

0.21

0.21

0.23

0.26

0.29

75.7

73.2

69.5

75.4

78.9

64.1

61.9

57.2

67.7

72.3

455,925

430,360

411,599

386,064

354,528

40,645

37,668

35,248

32,308

28,510

1,223,377

1,182,319

1,173,787

1,163,266

1,084,971

414,928

393,606

376,810

349,476

321,779

Results
Net turnover

Cash flow from operating activities

1)

Balance sheet data

Ratios
2)

Debt-equity ratio
Operating indicators
Punctual arrivals (%)

3)

Punctual departures (%)

4)

Business volume (in quantities)
Schiphol Group
Air transport movements
Passengers (x 1,000)
Cargo (x 1,000 kg)
Of which:
Amsterdam Airport Schiphol
Air transport movements
Passengers (x 1,000)
Cargo (x 1,000 kg)

39,607

36,772

34,420

31,570

27,795

1,222,594

1,180,717

1,171,256

1,161,234

1,082,846

1,864

1,868

1,928

1,791

1,717

Personnel
Average effective workforce
in full-time equivalents

1)

See the cash flow statement for a breakdown.

2)

Return on capital employed (ROCE): Operating profit (loss) / (average liabilities less non-interest bearing short-term loans).

3)

Percentage of flights that arrived within 15 minutes of schedule.

4)

Percentage of flights that departed within 15 minutes of schedule.
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Return on Net Assets (RONA)

Operating result

Operating profit (loss) / average fixed assets

As a % of net turnover

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

26.0

1996

9.5

1996

29.0

1997

9.9

1997

29.0

1998

11.0

1998

32.7

1999

9.4

1999

30.9

2000

8.7

2000

29.6

30.0

EBITDA

Capital expenditure

Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and

x NLG 1 million

34.0

amortisation x NLG 1 million
0

200

400

600

0

800

200

1996

442

1996

248

1997

492

1997

376

1998

575

1998

588

1999

565

1999

728

2000

643

2000

637

400

Interest coverage ratio

Operating cash flow per share

Operating profit (loss) / net financial items

(in NLG)

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

0

1,000

1996

4.4

1996

2,447

1997

7.3

1997

3,048

1998

7.0

1998

3,644

1999

6.3

1999

3,737

2000

6.2

2000

3,235

2,000

Earnings per share

Dividend per share

(in NLG)

(in NLG)

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

0

100

1996

1,226

1996

146

1997

1,653

1997

204

1998

2,034

1998

263

1999

1,636

1999

263

2000

1,850

2000

292

3,000

200

600

4,000

300

800

5,000

400
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Fines for Exceeding Noise Zones

Besides the unique concept of the AirportCity

Noise disturbance still remains a matter of concern.

formula, the strength of our company lies

Despite the fact that in 2000, the number of

particularly in the performance of our employees,

residences experiencing noise disturbance was

who are most valuable and give us all the

at its lowest, the 35 Kosten Unit (KU) noise zone

confidence in the future.

was exceeded at the end of the Operations year
(1 November – 31 October). This was attributed
to unfavourable weather conditions during fall.
The government imposed a penalty of
NLG 5 million. However, we expect to gain greater
control over this problem with the arrival of the
fifth runway in 2003, and the introduction of
new standards for safety and environment in the
same year.
Promising Alliance with Fraport
The formalisation of the alliance with Fraport
(formerly known as Flughafen Frankfurt/Main AG)
in the Pantares airport alliance was a milestone
towards internationalisation. The alliance will
provide financial advantages and enable Schiphol
Group to shape expansion plans.
During 2000, further progress was made with
the AirportCity formula, particularly towards
the development of e-business for the virtual
AirportCity, which will take shape in the coming
years.
Confidence in the Future
Amsterdam Airport Schiphol will continue to
expand and quality will continue to improve as
a result of major investments. The proposed
flotation on the stock market will make
internationalisation viable and will also stimulate
export of the AirportCity formula.

Gerlach Cerfontaine
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Goals and Strategy
Value creation for shareholders
Amsterdam Schiphol to IATA top ranking
Globalising the AirportCity formula

Value Creation Leads with RONA as Gauge

The company has formulated the following goals:

Schiphol Group’s general aim is to create and

to offer high-quality services at competitive

develop AirportCities. The company’s financial aim

prices;

is to accrue value for shareholders by employing

to strengthen Schiphol Group’s national and

the AirportCity formula, while safeguarding the

international reputation by developing and

interests of all other parties – airlines, passengers,

exploiting the Schiphol brand name;

staff, suppliers, governments and local residents.

to create a stimulating working environment;
to generate value for the financiers so that the

Return on Net Assets (RONA) is used as a gauge for

necessary funding for international expansion

value creation and needs to be higher than the

can be attained.

Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) – the
average cost of capital after taxes. In the absence

IATA List is the Gauge for Operational Excellence

of a listing on the stock market, the weighted

The official IATA list of best airports is an

average cost of capital is estimated at 8%. In 2000

important gauge for Schiphol Group’s

Schiphol Group generated a RONA of 8.7%.

performance. The company sees this as one of
the essential operational goals to get Amsterdam

Strategy Aimed at Long-Term Profit

Airport Schiphol back to the top of the list of best

The strategy is aimed at international expansion as

European Airports. In 1999, Schiphol was fourth on

well as further expansion of Amsterdam Airport

the list.

Schiphol. Schiphol Group will continue to develop

To achieve this, all parts of the operational process

the AirportCity formula, strengthening its

– such as punctuality, quality, customer service, and

competitive position within the set regulations for

baggage handling – must deliver top performance.

environment and safety as well as continuing the
expansion of the mainport position as a multi-

Schiphol Group uses the system of Value-Based

modal transportation hub.

Management to control activities and investments.

To realise this, continuous investments are needed

All Business areas should eventually achieve

to increase volume and improve the quality of

economic growth or accrue returns above the cost

operational processes. Investments are also needed

of capital. Achieving economic growth through

for commercial services, real estate, and e-business.

acquisitions must take local risks into account.

Schiphol Group intends to build up an inter-

This is an important selection criterion, as is the

national network of airports through which

contribution that new participations bring towards

the AirportCity formula can be exploited and

strengthening the AirportCity formula. It is

further developed.

therefore essential that participations not only

2000 annual report Schiphol Group

provide financial support; it must also be possible
to influence policy of the participations
adequately.
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Financial developments
Net profit rises to NLG 317 million; turnover to NLG 1.4 billion
Extraordinary expenses due to IPO
RONA amounts to 8.7%
Strong financial position continues

Slight decrease in RONA, rise in net profit

operating profit. Return on equity (ROE) was 9.9%,

Schiphol Group’s net profit in 2000 was

as compared with 9.8% in 1999. Performance in

NLG 316.8 million, a 13.1% increase on last year’s

both 2000 and 1999 was kept down by extra-

NLG 280.1 million. However, return on net assets

ordinary expenses, without which ROE would

(RONA) decreased slightly from 9.4% in 1999 to

have been 11.1% (12.1% in 1999).

8.7% in 2000. This decrease was mainly due to
substantial investments which caused total fixed
assets to grow at a relatively faster pace than the
Net turnover increased by more than 10%
Net turnover increased by 10.8% in 2000 to NLG 1,404.4 million. Broken down by category, the picture
looked as follows:

Net turnover
(in NLG million)

49% Airport fees
18% Concessions
13% Leases
2% Utility services
18% Other activities

Airport fees

2000

1999

Up/down

689.2

632.2

9.0%

Concessions

253.1

255.0

-/- 0.7%

Leases

187.4

159.5

17.5%

Utility services

34.0

32.8

3.7%

Other activities

240.7

188.0

28.0%
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Important financial items
(in NLG million)
2000

1999

Difference
as a %

Performance
Net

1,404.4

1,267.5

10.8

20.4

25.9

-/- 21.2

Own work capitalised
Total operating income
Total operating expenses before depreciation/amortisation

1,424.8

1,293.4

10.2

-/- 781.7

-/- 728.5

7.3

643.1

564,9

13.8

-/- 228.1

-/- 172.6

32.2

EBITDA
Depreciation/Amortisation
Operating profit

415.0

392.3

5.8

Financial income

-/- 66.9

-/- 62.1

7.7

10.6

14.9

-/- 28.9

0.7

71.4

Share of operating profit of participating interests
Net profit/taxation

-/-

Profit from ordinary activities after taxation

1.2

-/-

357.5

344.4

3.8

Extraordinary expenses

-/- 40.0

-/- 64.3

-/- 37.8

Minority interests

-/-

0.7

–

–

316.8

280.1

13.1

Balance sheet total

5,445.7

4,867.6

11.9

Fixed assets

5,032.7

4,491.3

12.1

Shareholders’ equity

3,401.9

3,001.7

13.3

812.8

577.0

40.9

Net profit
Balance sheet development

Creditors: amounts falling due after 1 year

The increase in airport fees was primarily

a successful promotional campaign.

attributable to a larger volume of business, both in

Income from utility services rose slightly, despite

terms of air transport movements and numbers of

a sharp increase in energy prices.

passengers. The net effect on income from airport

The main factor contributing to the growth in

fees of a number of price increases at Amsterdam

other activities was an increase in income from

Schiphol remained limited to 1.2%.

parking fees.

Income from leases grew primarily because new
office buildings with a very high occupancy rate
were taken into operation.
Concession fees fell, but much less than expected.
Duty-free shopping on intra-EU travel was
abolished on 1 July 1999. 2000 was the first full
financial year in which the effects of this measure
were felt. Schiphol Group managed to limit the
drop in concession fees by adjusting its formulas,
increasing the total shop area, and conducting

15
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Increase in operating expenses primarily due to depreciation/amortisation and ICT investment
Operating expenses, including depreciation and amortisation, were up by 12.1% to NLG 1,009.8 million.
They break down as follows:

Operating expenses
(in NLG million)

44% Costs of work contracted out and other external costs
23% Amortisation and depreciation
22% Salaries and social charges
11% Other operating expenses

2000

1999

Up/down

Costs of work contracted out and
other external costs

451.3

431.3

4.6%

Salaries and social charges

220.1

208.5

5.6%

Amortisation and depreciation

228.1

172.5

32.2%

Other operating expenses

110.3

88.8

24.2%

The costs of work contracted out and other

grow by 5.8% to NLG 415.0 million. EBITDA

external costs (e.g. cleaning and maintenance)

(earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation

largely reflected operational growth at

and amortisation) increased by 13.8% to

Amsterdam Schiphol.

NLG 643.1 million.

Although a reduction in headcount was carried
through in 1999, it primarily affected middle

On balance, with more capital tied up because

management and staff, whereas the number of

of high investment levels, financial expenses went

‘shop floor’ employees was increased as part of

up by 7.7% to NLG 66.9 million.

our drive to improve service. Organic growth of
salaries, resulting from a tight labour market

The share of the profit of non-consolidated

and a new pay-and-conditions agreement,

participations was NLG 10.6 million, down from

also contributed to increased salaries and

NLG 14.9 million in 1999. This decrease was largely

social charges.

due to the fact that Brisbane Airport Company’s

The substantial increase in depreciation/amorti-

profit was boosted last year by the release of

sation was attributable to continuing high

a provision in the sum of NLG 10.0 million.

investment and to incidental costs of disposals
in connection with the development of new

NLG 35.0 million in extraordinary expenses

piers in what is known as the ‘GHJ’ area.

were recognised in 2000, primarily incurred in

Other operating expenses increased following

connection with the proposed stock exchange

heavy investment in ICT and E-business.

flotation. This amount included flotation costs
to be incurred in 2001, as well as a penalty of

These developments in operating income

NLG 5.0 million for exceeding noise limits at

and expenses caused the operating profit to

some monitoring points.
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Financial position remains strong

to finance all proposed investments, the group’s

Capital ratios were again excellent.

financial position is such that it expects to have no

Group equity was up from NLG 3,002 million to

trouble raising capital on acceptable terms.

NLG 3,402 million. The most important changes
in 2000 were in net profit (NLG 316.8 million),
distributed dividend (NLG 50.0 million) and
unrealised increases in the value of commercial
property (NLG 146.7 million).
Schiphol Group invested approximately
NLG 640 million in 2000 in the extension and
improvement of facilities, mostly at Amsterdam
Schiphol. The most important investments were in
the construction of the fifth runway and of B pier,
the extension of E pier, the purchase of land
and the LVB building, the extension of luggage
facilities, the extension and renovation of the
Central Lounge and the widening of D pier.
Net cash inflow from operating activities was
NLG 553.7 million, i.e. NLG 86.5 million less than
in 1999. The decrease is attributable to movements
in provisions (e.g. payments credited to the
restructuring provision formed for the 1999
corporate reorganisation) and in operating capital.
The cash outflow from investing activities
exceeded the cash inflow from operating activities
by NLG 77.0 million.
In 1999 Schiphol Group launched a euro
medium-term note programme (EMTN), which
enables the group to issue up to EUR 500 million
(NLG 1.1 billion) in bonds in the next few years.
In 2000 the group made use of this programme
for the first time, raising EUR 220 million in notes
with maturities of up to two years, in order to
repay a bond loan of NLG 400 million raised
in 1993.
Large investments will continue in 2001
In 2001, Schiphol Group expects to invest
approximately NLG 1,150 million at Amsterdam
Schiphol in the construction of the fifth runway,
the extension of the World Trade Centre and the
West Terminal and the extension and renovation
of the South Lounge. The planned investments
do not take account of any acquisitions
or participations.
Although the group’s operational cash flow in
the next few years is not expected to be sufficient
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Risk Management

Risk management is more than managing financial

Financial risk

risks. The critical success factors of a company-

Schiphol Group has its own manuals and

wide risk management strategy are: the risk

procedures for managing its exchange rate and

management process itself, the implementation

interest rate risks. The management tools used

of a uniform reference model and the overall risk

include standard derivatives. For participating

management approach to plan implementation.

interests, use is made of loan capital denominated

At the moment, various risk assessment systems

in the local currencies. As the group intends to

are being used.

hold on to these participations in the long term,
it has not taken further steps to hedge equity

Safety and the environment

exposure. Loan capital is usually raised on a

Schiphol Group has extensive procedures

non-recourse basis.

for managing environmental and safety risks.
These procedures are firmly rooted in the group’s

Capital structure risks are monitored by means of

organisations and set down in company manuals.

the group’s financial ratios, e.g. debt-equity ratio

All procedures do, of course, take account of

and the interest coverage ratio (i.e. operating

existing and proposed laws, rules and regulations

profit (loss) divided by net financial items).

governing safety and the environment. Please
refer to the environmental report that will be
published soon.

Personnel and Organisation
MD programme underway
Staff numbers increase slightly
Working hours more flexible

End-Consumer Orientation Results in Business areas

Increase in Number of Employees

Schiphol Group’s strategy is increasingly directed

The number of active employees at Schiphol Group

at commercial services for end-consumers.

increased almost 4%, from 1,912 in 1999 to 1,984

To manage such diversification, Schiphol Group

at year-end. The rise was largely due to the

uses a matrix structure with operational business

incorporation of 69 employees from Rotterdam

units and a division into product-market

Airport BV, who were still employed by the City

combinations (PMCs). These PMCs are categorised

of Rotterdam in 1999. Another contributing factor

according to four Business areas: Aviation,

was the increase of a number of services and

Consumers, Real Estate and Alliances &

operational departments including baggage and

Participations. In 2000, the necessary basis was

information services. Because FMS BV, which

established to bring the accountability structure

provided facility management services to third

in line with the adapted business model.

parties, was dissolved in 2000, 23 employees
disappeared from the count. The average number

Management Development Aimed at Success

of FTEs fell from 1,869 in 1999 to 1,864 in 2000.

Factors

In addition to the 1,984 active employees at

In 2000, an internal workgroup investigated which

the end of 2000, some 32 employees are still

managers’ personal and behavioural characteristics

redundant due to organisational changes at

play a significant role in Schiphol Group’s success.

Amsterdam Schiphol in 1999. In the previous year,

These competencies are central in all MD activities.

this figure was 93. At the end of 2000, 104 older

In a joint effort with De Baak Institute and

employees took advantage of an exceptional

Nyenrode University, an MD programme will begin

retirement scheme, also largely as a result of the

in 2001 to further develop these competencies.

organisational changes.

A Resource Committee has also been established
to link individuals’ ambitions and positions.

New Collective Labour Agreement
In April 2000, Schiphol Group signed a new

In 2000, a personnel survey was carried out to

collective labour agreement with the unions,

measure the results and experiences gained from

which will run to 1 April 2001. As well as securing

the 1999 reorganisation which took place in 1999.

a 3% pay rise starting 1 January 2001, all day-shift

The outcome showed that reorganisation had not

employees can choose between a 34, 36, or

resolved all bottlenecks and these results have

38-hour working week. At the same time, working

been used for initiating improvement actions at

hour reductions will be abolished. This makes

departmental level. At the end of 2000, an initial

Schiphol Group one of the first companies in the

evaluation showed that job satisfaction and staff

Netherlands to include flexible working conditions

commitment rose in areas where management

into its collective labour agreement, thus

and staff correlated and exercised points of action

effectively adjusting the working week to suit

together.

individual circumstances.
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Rotterdam Airport BV and Schiphol Dienstverlening BV have also signed new collective
labour agreements. This was the first independently
agreed collective labour agreement for Rotterdam
Airport, as all employees previously fell under the
legal status of the City of Rotterdam.
A new personnel information system, which
provides more opportunities to gather information
for managing the organisation, was introduced in
November 2000.

Support Units
ICT Essential Part of Operational Management
To support activities for the Business areas,
Schiphol Group has a number of central support
units. One of the most important of these is the
support unit, Information and Communications
Technology (ICT).
The ICT support unit sustains the Business areas
in the development of information systems and
e-business, and maintains the operational ICT
systems. A number of areas within the new FIS2000
flight information system have been implemented
in 2000, such as the gate management system
and 2000 flight information monitors in the
operational area. It is expected that the FIS2000
will be fully operational in 2001.
A number of modules have been implemented
for Narcis, the new financial administration
and management system. Narcis ensures that
information is integrated from the various systems
of the Business areas, ensuring the speedier
availability of additional management information.
The number of specific management tools is
increasing as a result of this. It is expected that
Narcis will be up and running in the summer
of 2001.
As a result of the alliance with Fraport, an ICT
cooperative venture has been established resulting
in large qualitative and quantitative advantages.
This has also created the opportunity to support
other airports within and outside Schiphol Group.

Accessibility, Noise Management and Safety
Collective transportation over 40%
Good noise performance
Clarity about crosswind criteria

General

Accessibility

Environment, Safety and Shortages are Universal

More than 40% Travellers on Collective

Problems

Transportation

Against the background of a worldwide increase

During 2000, two new tracks were inaugurated

in aviation, capacity problems are common at

at Schiphol Railway Station and the journey to

many airports. As a result of environmental and

Amsterdam Schiphol was reduced on a number of

safety regulations and due to a lack of space,

lines. Services for travellers also improved and the

the expansion of airport capacity in Europe is

use of public transport increased from 32.3% to

becoming increasingly difficult. The sector is faced

35.7%. If all forms of collective transportation are

with having to manage the available capacity

totalled, including hotel buses, charter buses and

efficiently to compensate for further growth

taxi buses, in 2000, 44.6% of all travellers used

without making any concessions to safety and

public or collective transportation to Amsterdam

noise level standards.

Schiphol, as opposed to 38.8% in 1999.
These figures show the target of 40% for 2003 as

In 2000, Schiphol Group together with Air Traffic

agreed with the government was already reached

Control Netherlands (LVNL) and the Dutch Airlines

in 2000. The policy to discourage the use of cars by

carried out research at the request of the Dutch

increasing parking rates was a clear contributing

government. The research looked at how to handle

factor.

the increase in air traffic after 2010 without
jeopardising safety and breaking noise disturbance

High-Speed Train Strengthens Hub Role

regulations, particularly since creating an airport

In 2000, Schiphol Group together with Dutch

island in the North Sea has been ruled out for the

Railways (NS) and KLM considered tendering for

time being.

the contract to develop the high-speed rail line
(HSL) to Paris. However, the government decided

The best scenario seems to be the construction of a

to open the contract for public tender and

sixth runway between the present runway 01L-19R

Schiphol Group was excluded from partaking.

and the forthcoming fifth runway. However,

Despite this, the government has decided that,

inclement weather conditions could lead to a huge

together with Schiphol Group, the future

loss of capacity. This could be compensated by

developer must ensure that the HSL provides a

constructing another runway parallel to runway

good alternative to air transport to a distance of

06-24, although a major disadvantage of such a

600 kilometres. The arrival of the HSL will offer

solution would be more flights over Amsterdam.

environmental advantages on shorter lines and

In 2001, further research will be carried out into

contribute to solving future capacity problems

how this can be avoided or whether the capacity

for Amsterdam Airport Schiphol.

loss could be compensated in another way.

21

22

2000 annual report Schiphol Group

Transportation by bus in and around Amsterdam
Schiphol improved with the introduction of

Number of noise affected houses
35 KU or more

Schiphol Sternet, which incorporated staff
transport. The idea was an initiative by Amsterdam

9,000

18,000

Airport Schiphol and the Amsterdam Regional
Authority (Regionaal Orgaan Amsterdam). Schiphol
Sternet is intended for commuters and passengers,

1995

17,079

1996

12,247

1997

12,721

and offers direct and frequent bus services to and

1998

10,999

from Amsterdam Schiphol from a number of

1999

10,404

surrounding towns.

2000

9,655

In addition, the introduction of the Southern
Tangent (Zuidtangent) – a fast, new bus service
in the region will improve the accessibility for

For exceeding the limits, the Minister of Transport,

personnel and passengers. The first phase is

Public Works and Water Management imposed a

expected to go into operation in 2002.

fine of NLG 5 million. Schiphol Group has appealed
this amount, because the 2000 figures showed the

As part of improving access to Amsterdam

lowest number of houses affected by 35 KU or

Schiphol, a feasibility study is being carried out

more achieved to date.

on a possible Underground Logistics System –
underground connection between Amsterdam

New Standards Agreed

Schiphol, Aalsmeer, and Hoofddorp for trans-

In June 2000, the Dutch parliament agreed on

porting flowers, plants, and other time-critical

new preliminary regulations laid down for

goods. This could contribute towards reducing

environment and safety, to take effect in 2003.

road congestion. A test case is being carried out at

These regulations will determine the growth of

the Delft University of Technology. A business case,

Amsterdam Airport Schiphol. The present noise

which has been positively received was created

zones will be abolished.

in 2000.
The Dutch aviation sector – which consists of the

Noise Management

local airlines, Air Traffic Control the Netherlands,
and Schiphol Group – will be held responsible for

Main Goal for Noise Control Achieved

the number of air transport movements that will

The most important objective in Amsterdam

fall under the new regulations. To optimise this,

Airport Schiphol’s Operations Plan for 2000

the aviation sector has begun creating a series of

was achieved. During the year under review,

measures to reduce noise disturbance around

9,655 residences were affected by noise levels of

Amsterdam Schiphol. This will enable them to

35 KU (Kosten Units) or more. These figures show

increase the number of air transport movements

that the airport was well within the legal limit

to between 520,000 and 600,000 per year.

of 12,000. This was also the case in 1999, when
10,404 residences were affected.

The Operations Plan for 2001 (from 1 November
2000 to 31 October 2001) works from a basis of

It must be acknowledged, however, that we did

436,700 air transport movements. This concurs with

not remain within the noise zone of 35 KU at all

the agreement laid down by the government,

monitoring points. At the presentation of the

which allows for an annual increase in the number

Operations Plan for 2000, Schiphol Group had

of air transport movements at Amsterdam Schiphol

indicated that they could not always guarantee

by 20,000, totalling 460,000 in 2002.For the night-

remaining within the limit. Despite a large number

time period – between 11:00 pm and 6:00 am – the

of preventative steps taken between July and

Operations Plan provides for 12,860 air transport

October, noise levels were exceeded at five points.

movements. The actual number of air transport

This occurred at 35 points in 1997, 14 points in

movements may, however, be lower than projected

1998 and 11 points in 1999.

in the 2001 Operations Plan.

annual report Schiphol Group 2000

Based on available statistics, once again in 2001,
fewer than 12,000 residences around Amsterdam
Schiphol will experience actual noise levels of
35 KU or more. The actual figure will come to
approximately 9,700. However, these figures do
not take into account weather conditions deviating
strongly from average weather conditions in
the Netherlands, and can therefore deviate
from expectations.
Agreements have been reached with the aviation
sector concerning the measures taken to remain on
schedule under unfavourable weather conditions.
Nonetheless, it is impossible to guarantee that the
noise zones will not be exceeded. Expectations are
that greater control will be gained over matters
related to noise once the new standards are
introduced in 2003.
The Minister of Transport, Public Works and Water
Management has concurred with the Operations
Plan for 2001.

Safety
Crosswind Criteria the Same for Day and Night
In 1999, the Dutch aviation sector took the
initiative to set up an independent study of the
safety of existing crosswind criteria pertaining to
runway allocation at Amsterdam Schiphol. The
study was concluded during the year under review.
The results have been passed on to the Ministry of
Transport, Public Works and Water Management.
The report revealed an unanimous recommendation to maintain equal criteria for day and
night flights at Amsterdam Schiphol.
The recommendation was for a maximum of
20 knots of crosswind and seven knots for tailwind,
both including hard gusts. The research committee
found that using the same criteria would provide
greater clarity for all airport users. The Minister
of Transport, Public Works and Water Management
accepted the recommendation. It was put into
effect in mid-November.
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Business area Aviation
Financial items
Passenger numbers continue to rise

(In NLG million)

2000

1999

More cargo after two years of stagnation
Better punctuality

RONA (in %)

4.4

5.1

Increased customer satisfaction

Total operating income

698

654

Construction started on fifth runway

Operating profit
Average fixed assets
Investments

106

110

2,380

2,162

377

429

Furthermore, Amsterdam Airport Schiphol’s own
surveys of customer and visitor satisfaction showed
improvement in 2000. Good punctuality and
baggage handling play an important part in these
assessments.
Punctuality Improves Again
The punctuality, both of arriving and departing
The Business area Aviation provides facilities and

passenger flights improved compared to the

services to the airlines and their passengers at

previous year. Of all incoming aircraft including

Amsterdam Schiphol. The division’s most important

charter flights, 75.7% arrived on time compared to

operational objective is to take the Schiphol

73.2% in 1999. Of all departing flights, 64.1% left

location into the IATA’s top ranking of Europe’s

Amsterdam Schiphol on time compared to 61.9%

best airports. To achieve this, the quality of services

in the previous year. These percentages are still

must continue to improve and Amsterdam

below our objective of 80% for arriving flights

Schiphol’s function as a mainport must be further

and 70% for departures.

built upon.

Good punctuality is of extra importance to
the many transfer passengers making use of

IATA Ranking: Number Four in Europe

Amsterdam Schiphol. Transfer passengers

In 1999, Amsterdam Schiphol ranked fourth on

accounted for 42.1% of all travellers at

the IATA list in Europe after Copenhagen, Helsinki,

Amsterdam Schiphol in 2000.

and Manchester; one place higher than in the
previous year. Ranked among airports with more

Baggage-Handling Problems Addressed

than 25 million passengers, Amsterdam Schiphol

Amsterdam Schiphol’s baggage-handling situation

stands in first place in Europe and number two in

left something to be desired in 2000. This was due

the world. The British magazine Business Traveler

to a variety of problems. In specific, there were

hailed Amsterdam Schiphol as the best European

capacity problems with the BASS automated

airport in 2000. The readers of Cargonews Asia

baggage system in processing transfer baggage.

voted Amsterdam Schiphol the ‘Best Airport in

Amsterdam Airport Schiphol owns the baggage

Europe’ and, for the third year running, called

system although independent companies carry out

it the ‘Best Cargo Terminal Operator’ because

the actual handling. More personnel were brought

of its efficient cargo handling and the quality

in to deal with the issue and to better manage

of its cargo facilities.

pressure on the system. Furthermore, much is being
done to increase the system’s capacity; the first
phase of this project should be completed in 2001.

2000 annual report Schiphol Group

Mild Growth in Destination Numbers

Cargo on the Rise Again

Strengthening the airport’s function as a mainport

In 2000, the quantity of air cargo showed a mild

requires continuous growth in the number of

growth of 3.5% to more than 1.2 million tons.

destinations and frequencies and good

This followed two years of stagnation resulting

accessibility. In 2000, the number of airlines

from night-time restrictions for cargo carriers.

operating scheduled flights into Amsterdam

However, the growth was less strong than at

Schiphol rose by 2 to 90, 7 of which only operate

other important European airports. As a result,

cargo flights. At year’s end, there were flights to

Amsterdam Schiphol’s market share dropped

218 destinations in 89 countries as compared to

from 14.8% to 14.2%.

215 destinations in 89 countries in the previous

Nevertheless, Amsterdam continues to occupy

year.

fourth place in the European ranking after
London, Frankfurt, and Paris. The volume of

Passenger Numbers Increase to almost 40 Million

mail carried increased by 0.5% to 44,790 tons.

In 2000, Amsterdam Airport Schiphol was host
to 39.6 million passengers, an increase of 7.7%

Airport Fees Most Important Income

compared to 1999. The number of air transport

Airport fees, consisting of takeoff, landing,

movements (scheduled and charter flights) came to

and parking charges, constitute nearly 50% of

just under 415,000, a growth of 5.4% year-on-year.

Schiphol Group’s income; its single greatest source

The increase in flights and passenger numbers in

of revenue. Within our tariff policy we are striving

the second half of the year lagged slightly behind

to improve Amsterdam Schiphol’s competitive

the first half.

position while trying to make the best possible use
of the available noise capacity. In 2000, we further

These growth figures for passengers and air

increased the difference in charges between

transport movements kept Amsterdam among

quieter and less quiet aircraft – this in an effort to

the top-ten European airport cities and market

stimulate use of only the quietest aircraft.

share remained more or less the same. Both in

Since 21 May 2000 Amsterdam Airport Schiphol

terms of passengers and air transport movements,

offers a 5% discount (previously 3.5%) to the

Amsterdam took fourth place after London, Paris

lowest-noise aircraft. Slightly less quiet aircraft

and Frankfurt.

pay the basic fee while the noisiest aircraft must
pay a surcharge of 15% (previously 10%). This last

Passenger movements at European airports

Cargo transport at European airports

(x 1,000)

(x 1,000 tonnes)

108,543

London 1)
2)

1,795.4

London 1)

73,641

Paris

1,573.2

Frankfurt

49,340

Frankfurt

1,386,7

Paris 2)

39,607

Amsterdam

1,222.6

Amsterdam

32,828

Madrid

674,4

Brussels

27,109

Rome 3)

499,9

Luxembourg

26,743

Milan 4)

423,6

Cologne

23,126

Munich

395,1

Zurich

22,627

Zurich

308,9

Madrid

21,599

Brussels

300,8

Milan 4)

1)

Heathrow, Gatwick and Stansted.

3)

Fiumicino and Ciampino.

2)

Charles de Gaulle and Orly.

4)

Malpensa and Linate.
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category includes Chapter 2 aircraft and some

November 2002 under good weather and visual

noisy Chapter 3 aircraft. Furthermore, we have

conditions. By the end of 2003, the runway will be

increased the minimum tonnage on which takeoff

suitable for all weather conditions.

and landing fees are based from 12 tons to
15 tons. In this way, we hope to discourage the

In 2001, renovation and extension of the South

use of small and non-commercial traffic at

Lounge will begin. This will effectively double

Amsterdam Schiphol.

the lounge’s size. The project should be complete
in 2004. Extension of the West Terminal will also

Investments in Capacity and Quality

start in the first quarter of 2001. A year after that,

In view of the stiff competition among airports,

construction will start on the new J Pier on the

Amsterdam Airport Schiphol must continue to

far side of the A4 highway. The pier will not be

improve the quality of its services. This competition

directly linked to the central terminal and thus,

arises from airports in surrounding countries.

for the first time, Amsterdam Airport Schiphol

However, when it comes to short-distance travel,

will have a satellite terminal. Instead it will be

other forms of transportation also provide

connected to the terminal by a ‘people mover’ –

competition – for instance, the high-speed train

an automated rail transport system. This combined

lines. But these trains also present an opportunity

project should be complete by late 2003.

for Amsterdam Schiphol to develop itself as a

Thereafter, construction will start on the H Pier.

multi-modal traffic hub.

All this growth plus the fifth runway should allow
Amsterdam Airport Schiphol to absorb the

In an effort to strengthen Amsterdam Airport

continued growth in passengers and aircraft

Schiphol’s position, an expected NLG 3.2 billion will

movements in the years to come.

be invested between now and 2005 to expand and
improve facilities at the airport.
Runway system with the fifth runway

The year 2000 saw completion of the new B Pier

Haarlem

Amsterdam

and the extended E Pier. The addition of 14 gates
with boarding bridges brought the total number
to 90. In extending the E Pier, the airport took

Badhoevedorp

account of the advent of increasingly larger
aircraft in the coming years, such as the Airbus
A 380. Early in 2000, construction to widen the
D Pier, Amsterdam Schiphol’s busiest pier, was
completed. Its concourse is now three times wider.

Hoofddorp

Amsterdam
Airport
Schiphol

This serves to increase waiting room capacity and
Amstelveen

make more space for passenger flows.
In mid-2000, a start was made on the Central
Security and Automatic Border Passage project.
After completion (projected for September 2001),
passengers will be able to cross the border easier
than now.
Construction Started on Fifth Runway
In September 2000, construction was started on
Amsterdam Schiphol’s fifth runway. The new
runway is located 2,100 metres to the north-west
of runway 01L-19R and runs parallel to it.
At 3,800 metres, it will ultimately be the airport’s
longest runway. It is expected that the first aircraft
will be able to take off from there in late

Aalsmeer

Business area Consumers
Financial items
Shopping area grows

(In NLG million)

2000

1999

RONA (in %)

30.2

30.7

Total operating income

533

470

Operating profit

228

213

Average fixed assets

754

694

91

149

Increased income from parking
Developing e-business

Investments

The objective of the Business area Consumers is
to provide a cohesive package of products and
services to the people who use Amsterdam Airport
Schiphol. This will involve the utilisation of
e-business technology. We will achieve much of
this by providing concession holders with shopping
concepts and facilities. It will serve to make the
airport more attractive to passengers and visitors.
Revenues will come mostly from concessions and

Revenues were influenced positively by the

parking fees. Amsterdam Airport Schiphol’s

increase in the number of shops, new concession

competitors consist of airports in surrounding

contracts and advertising campaigns. The growth

countries, shopping centres in the area and

in passenger numbers also played a role here.

– for the parking facilities – parking lots outside

Revenues from advertising income at Amsterdam

Amsterdam Schiphol and forms of transportation

Schiphol came to NLG 19.8 million. The occupancy

other than passenger cars.

rate of advertising spaces was 91.8%.

Investments in Capacity and Quality

Shift from Short to Long-Term Parking

In the years to come, Schiphol Group will be

In 2000, parking revenues rose by 10% to

investing more than NLG 800 million to further

NLG 116.2 million. The number of short-term

enlarge the shopping areas and improve facilities

parkers at Amsterdam Schiphol dropped by

at Amsterdam Airport Schiphol. Comparisons with

2.5% while long-term parkers increased by 8.5%.

other major airports show that this could cause

It appears that our campaign to discourage short-

expenditures per passenger, per square metre of

term parking has been successful. During the year

surface area to grow even further.

under review, construction started to enlarge the
P1 garage and a renovated P30 parking lot was

Duty-Free Sales Problems Avoided

opened for Schiphol staff.

Revenues for the Business area Consumers were
favourable once again in 2000. This was due, in

Shop and Restaurant Areas Enlarged

part, to the high occupancy rate of the rented

The renovation and extension of Amsterdam

spaces in the terminal and expansion of the

Schiphol’s Central Lounge are now complete. The

available shopping area.

See Buy Fly shopping centre has been modernised

Despite the fact that 2000 was the first full year

and has tripled in size. This is also the case for the

in which there were no duty-free sales to EU

airport’s restaurant facilities. Amsterdam Airport

travellers, revenues in the See Buy Fly shopping

Schiphol now has a Communications Centre where

area were only slightly lower than the 1999 level

passengers can work, hold meetings and log onto

– NLG 173.6 million compared to NLG 181.4 million.

the Internet.
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The Central Lounge’s total floor area now amounts
to 22,000 square metres as compared to
12,000 square metres previously. It will serve as the
model for future expansion work in the West and
South Lounges.
‘Last-minute shops’ – have been built on the
D and E Piers. These sell the highest priority
products such as liquor and perfume and fill a clear
need both for departing or transfer passengers.
Shops are also being built on the B and G Piers
in addition to the existing restaurant facilities.
Furthermore, new restaurants have been placed
all around Schiphol Plaza and in the terminal, and
a new meditation center has been opened for
passengers of all creeds.
In a further effort to improve service, passengers
and the people picking them up or dropping
them off can now request the latest news about
changes in arrival and departure times by e-mail.
Since December 2000, they can request the
information by mobile phone as well.
E-business-strategy
Schiphol Group’s e-business strategy aims to
translate and further develop the AirportCity
formula on the Internet – the Virtual AirportCity.
Important elements of the strategy include online
shopping at See Buy Fly (pre-ordering), making
travel reservations, selling travel-related products
and services and providing information to meeters
and greeters and local residents.

Business area Real Estate

29

Financial items
Many new projects take shape

(In NLG million)

2000

1999

WTC Phase Two starts

RONA (in %)*

17.2

10.4

More international activities

Total operating income

120

97

High occupancy rate

Operating profit
Average fixed assets
Investments

88

63

1,367

1,078

152

146

* RONA including result of revaluation of property portfolio. RONA excluding result of revaluation of property portfolio was 6.4% in 2000 (1999: 5.8%).

Schiphol Real Estate (SRE) is involved in the
development, management, operation
and investment in real estate at and around
Amsterdam Schiphol and other airports inside and
outside the Netherlands. Its central objective is to
develop real estate in AirportCities into dynamic,
high-profit locations. The policy is oriented to
geographic diversification, a mix of office and
commercial property and a combination of

for high-quality office space and industrial

development and the regular sale of non-strategic

structures at Amsterdam Airport Schiphol. In many

property. Its annual results are compared to the

cases, offices completed this last year were fully

Dutch ROZ/IPD index, which serves as a benchmark.

rented before delivery date.

Large Market Demand

Numerous Projects Completed

The year 2000 was a good one for SRE thanks to

In 2000, the Avioport office building went into

the completion of a number of projects and an

service at Schiphol Centre as did the Columbus

occupancy rate of 96%. The large market demand

Building at Schiphol Southeast. At Schiphol North,

can be attributed to the continued growth in the

the Schiphol North Port industrial complex was

Dutch economy and the aviation sector as well as

opened and Schiphol East saw the opening of

the attractive locations, good accessibility and

the Constellation Building.

high quality of the property on offer. At this time,
SRE has a property portfolio amounting to 250,000

In November 2000, the second phase of the World

square metres at and around Amsterdam Schiphol

Trade Centre Schiphol Airport began. This will

and is building another 80,000 square metres.

effectively double the building’s current capacity
and will include a parking lot for 2,700 cars.

At the end of 2000, the portfolio’s market

At Schiphol Southeast, construction has started on

value came to NLG 1.4 billion compared to

a postal sorting center for the Dutch Post Office

NLG 1.1 billion a year earlier. Of this increase,

which should be completed during the course

NLG 147 million was the result of revaluation of

of 2001. Construction has also started on the

the property portfolio and NLG 144 million was

Caravelle office building and another building for

from investments in property. The unit sold

the Dutch Immigration and Naturalisation Service,

NLG 5 million worth of land during the year.

both of which should be completed this year.
Finally, construction is expected to start on an

More and more international companies are being
attracted to the AirportCity formula. This has been
made apparent by the continuing market demand

office building which will bear the name Tristar.
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Activities Outside Schiphol
SRE has joined forces with the Municipality of
Haarlemmermeer (in which Amsterdam Schiphol
is located) and the Schiphol Area Development
Company to develop a soil bank of about
250 hectares of ground. This is land bordering
on the A4 highway to the south of Amsterdam
Schiphol, which will be used in future industrial
development.
At Rotterdam Airport, SRE is involved in
developing the grounds in front of the terminal
on which offices will be built.
During the year under review, SRE signed
preliminary contracts to create Flight Forum,
a business park of 65 hectares near Eindhoven
Airport. In 2000, work started on the infrastructure
and, in mid-2001, actual construction should start.
At Lelystad Airport, SRE is involved in developing
eight office buildings, each with 3,000 square
metres of floor space.
SRE and Dutch physical engineering company
Grontmij joined hands in 2000 to form Malpensa
Real Estate. Its purpose is to associate with
local parties to develop property projects near
Malpensa, Milan’s new airport. SRE has a 60%
interest in the company; Grontmij has 40%. The
locations will be developed into an industrial
logistics centre and office grounds.
Brisbane Airport Corporation is studying
possibilities of teaming up with SRE to create
a property project at its airport. It involves the
development of an office complex, a business
centre and a four-star hotel. The permits have
already come through.
SRE is advising Hong Kong International Airport
(HIA) about property development on its grounds.
HIA has called for a public tender to develop and
operate a logistical centre at its cargo centre. SRE
and Fraport submitted a joint offer for this project.

Business area Alliances and Participations
Financial items
Cooperation with Fraport takes shape

(In millions of guilders)

2000

1999

More traffic at Rotterdam and Eindhoven
JFK Terminal 4 reconstruction complete in 2001

RONA (in %)*

0.9

8.6

Continuing growth in Brisbane

Total operating income

74

72

Operating profit

-/- 7

6

Average fixed assets

261

237

17

4

Investments

* In calculating the RONA, results in participations were taken into account. Financial fixed assets were incorporated into the average fixed assets.

The aims of the Business area Alliances &
Participations are (1) to strengthen the position
of domestic, regional airports that are part of
Schiphol Group and (2) to export the AirportCity
formula by entering into participations in foreign
airports. This serves to spread risk while achieving
economies of scale, which helps to lower costs. At
present, our participations are limited though we
expect considerable growth in the years to come.

and other ICT projects. In this way we hope to

Especially outside the Netherlands, the worldwide

benefit from cost savings and economies of scale

trends of airport privatisation and concentration

while improving quality at both airports.

will provide us with numerous opportunities for

Furthermore, we will work to enter into collective

expansion.

participations in foreign airports.

Emphasis Shifts from Aviation to AirportCity

Fraport complements Schiphol Group well in its

At present, this Business area’s activities are

realisation of the AirportCity formula. Both

centred chiefly on aviation. However, it is our

companies are strong in airport management,

intention to apply at least two elements of the

ICT, and in developing airports into traffic hubs.

AirportCity formula to activities at every foreign

Schiphol Group has an excellent reputation in the

airport; this is the only way to generate economies

retail and real estate sector within the AirportCity

of scale and synergy. For this reason, the inter-

formula while Fraport is strong in ground handling

national activities of the Business areas Consumers

and cargo.

and Real Estate will be incorporated into that of
Alliances & Participations just as soon as they

Dutch Regional Airports

attain ‘critical mass’.
Record Passenger Numbers at Rotterdam Airport
Pantares Partnership Takes Shape

Rotterdam Airport is a wholly-owned subsidiary

Late in 1999, Schiphol Group and Fraport initiated

of Schiphol Group. Last year, passenger numbers

a study into the possibilities of cooperation.

there increased by almost 15% to a record 697,000.

In 2000, the partnership started to take shape

Air transport movements increased by more

with the creation of an alliance called Pantares,

than 11% to 24,000. Cargo dropped by half to

the world’s first cross-border partnership between

782 tons, chiefly the result of the airport’s policy to

airports. By working together, Schiphol Group and

discourage high-noise aircraft. Despite the increase

Fraport want to increase their opportunities on the

in traffic, complaints about noise decreased

world market. The partnership focuses mainly on

dramatically.

retail activities, terminal development, e-business,
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The airport took its first steps in a far-reaching

Foreign Airports

renovation of the terminal, which dates from 1970.
The project, for which NLG 20 million has been

First Portion of JFK Terminal in Use

earmarked, will be completed in 2001. In 2000,

Through its subsidiary Schiphol USA, Schiphol

the airport reached an agreement with the City

Group maintains a 40% interest in the joint

of Rotterdam about further developing the airport

venture JFKIAT, which operates Terminal 4 at

at its current location.

JFK Airport in New York City. In 2000 Terminal
4 handled 5.2 million passengers; an increase of

A Good Year for Eindhoven Airport

over 12% year-on-year. While Alitalia left JFK’s

Eindhoven Airport, in which Schiphol Group holds

Terminal 4 in 2000, the Qualiflyer Group, an

a 51% interest, had a good year in 2000. Passenger

alliance consisting of Swissair, Sabena and TAP Air

numbers rose by more than 18% to 341,000 and air

Portugal, moved in.

transport movements increased by 12% to 16,200.
The increases can be attributed largely to the

In 1997, JFKIAT started reconstruction of Terminal 4

growth of leisure travel.

and, in May 2000, the first section was taken into
operation. All construction should be completed in

In August 2000, a number of stakeholders around

May of 2001. The rebuilding, which involved total

Eindhoven Airport signed a regional agreement

investments of US$ 1.4 billion, will create a new

involving the airport’s development between now

face for JFK International Airport. The project was

and 2015. One important point was that noise

financed on a project basis by tax-exempt bonds

impact will no longer be measured according to

issued by the New York City Airport Authority and

aircraft movements but, instead, will be based

guaranteed by a local insurance company.

on actual noise production. An independent
organisation will supervise the enforcement of

Delta Airlines has signed a declaration of intent

these rules.

with JFKIAT, stating that it will start using Terminal
4 to operate its international flights starting in

In mid-2000, construction activities to enlarge the

2004. Delta plans to create a second international

commercial aviation apron were completed.

hub after Atlanta. This means that, once the

The apron was extended by 50% to 67,500 square

current construction activities are completed,

metres.

a new operation to further extend the terminal
will begin. An amount of US$ 1.6 billion has been

Lelystad Airport

earmarked for this and financing will take place

Lelystad Airport, a wholly-owned subsidiary of

as it did for the first operation. After the second

Schiphol Group, saw its flights drop by 6% to

extension, Terminal 4’s capacity will grow to

136,400. This was due largely to the poor summer

42 gates.

weather, which had a major effect on general
aviation.

Good Progress at Brisbane Airport
Through Schiphol Australia, Schiphol Group has

Late in 2000, stakeholders signed a pact that will

a 16% interest in Brisbane Airport Corporation

allow for further growth at Lelystad Airport.

(BAC), the airport’s operating company. As a result

Conditions for this will include the introduction of

of the cooperation between Schiphol Group and

an instrument landing system (which has already

Fraport, the latter has gained a 1% interest in BAC.

taken place) and air traffic control. Furthermore,

In 2000, passenger numbers rose by over 8% to

flight routes must be moved to higher altitudes

11.6 million. The increase was chiefly among

so that noise impact for local residents decreases.

domestic fliers.
In 2000, the Australian subsidiary of Virgin Group
chose Brisbane Airport as its home base. Since
then it has started operating flights to Sydney,
Melbourne and Adelaide. Furthermore, Impulse
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Airlines has started operating domestic flights.
These introductions served to increase domestic
passenger numbers in the second half of the year.
Developments towards creating an AirportCity
progressed well in 2000. A covered parking
garage for more than 2,000 cars went into service
near the domestic terminal. In the time to come,
six industrial areas will be developed in phases,
providing a total of 970 hectares. During the year
under review, a number of important businesses
located their offices at the airport. Furthermore,
a start was made in the construction of a rail line
between Brisbane, the airport and Australia’s ‘Gold
Coast’ and should be completed in the course of
this year.
Other Foreign Activities
In 2000, Schiphol International participated in
ENEA, a consortium that made an offer for a 51%
interest in Aeroporti di Roma SpA, which operates
the Roman airports Fiumicino and Ciampino.
The consortium further consisted of Fraport,
ABN AMRO, Dresdner Bank, and seven Italian
banks and companies. However, the interest
finally went to a competitor.
In 2000, Schiphol Group made preparations to
bring out a new offer for a 49% interest in the
operating company for Jakarta Sukarno-Hatta
Airport. In 1999, we had already brought out
an offer, but a change in government delayed
the process.
At the end of October 2000, a Chinese-European
consortium in which Schiphol Group and Fraport
have a joint interest of 37.5% put out an offer
to develop and operate a logistics centre at
Hong Kong Chek Lap Kok Airport.
In our partnership with Fraport, European projects
will take a central role. Within this context,
Schiphol Group and Fraport entered into a
consortium which is considering making an offer
on a shareholding in ANA, the operating company
for all airports in Portugal.
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Forecast
EBITDA will further increase
Net results may suffer under corporate taxes
Continued high investments

We expect our earnings before interest, taxation,

The positive expectations regarding operational

depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) to further

results are based in part on the projected

increase in 2001. This depends in part on the

continued growth of air traffic from which the

approval of our proposed airport fees for 2001.

Amsterdam Schiphol location in particular will

It looks like that in 2001, for the first time,

profit.

corporate taxes will be levied. Depending on
when tax obligations take effect, the net result

Schiphol, 22 February 2001

will diminish.
The Board of Management
In 2001, Schiphol Group plans to invest

G.J. Cerfontaine

NLG 1.15 billion in the Amsterdam Schiphol

M.E. van Lier Lels

location. These investments will be partly

R. Uijlenhoet

financed out of the cashflow and partly through

P.M. Verboom

additional funding. The projected investments
do not take account of any possible acquisitions
or participations.
Schiphol Group’s staff roster is expected to grow
slightly in the coming year.

Financial Statements
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Consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2000 (after profit appropriation)
(in NLG 1,000)

Assets
31 December 2000

31 December 1999

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
for operating activities

3,465,899

3,202,617

Commercial property

1,399,762

1,115,434

Financial fixed assets

4,865,661

4,318,051

167,086

173,264

5,032,747

4,491,315

Current assets
Stock

4,942

5,156

Debtors

273,169

202,712

Cash at bank and in hand

134,804

168,460
412,915

376,328

5,445,662

4,867,643

2000 annual report Schiphol Group

Liabilities
31 December 2000

31 December 1999

3,401,905

3,001,671

Minority interests

16,153

15,676

Deferred investment grants

31,345

31,358

Shareholders’ equity

Provisions
Major repairs

46,577

53,219

Early retirement

65,066

54,044

Other provisions

183,938

202,946
295,581

310,209

Long-term liabilities

812,828

576,922

Current liabilities

887,850

931,807

5,445,662

4,867,643
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Consolidated profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2000
(in NLG 1,000)

2000

1999

1,404,437

1,267,471

20,326

25,934

1,424,763

1,293,405

Costs of work contracted out and other third-party charges

451,269

431,277

Salaries and social charges

220,096

208,482

Amortisation/depreciation and movements in value

228,147

172,574

Other operating expenses

110,281

88,803

Total operating expenses

1,009,793

901,136

Net turnover
Own work capitalised
Total operating income

Operating profit
Financial items

414,970
-/-

Profit (Loss) from ordinary activities before taxation
Taxation

40,000

725
316,769

692
14,900
344,428

-/-

317,494
-/-

62,049
330,220

-/-

357,494
-/-

Group profit (loss) after taxation

Net profit

1,228
10,567

Profit (Loss) from ordinary activities after taxation

Minority interests

392,269
-/-

348,155
-/-

Share of operating results of participating interests

Extraordinary expenses

66,815

64,250
280,178

-/-

36
280,142

Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2000
(in NLG 1,000)

Net profit

2000

1999

316,769

280,142

Add (Less):
Depreciation/Amortisation
Sale of assets
Disposals for assets under construction
Release of negative goodwill

172,574

4,835

–

1,680
-/-

Addition to deferred investment grant
Movements in provisions

228,147

–

3,012

-/-

3,012

1,397

14,005

-/- 14,627

92,074

18,554

84,403

Net movements in stock,
debtors and current liabilities*

Net cash inflow from operating activities

236,974

360,044

553,743

640,186

Additions and investments
Additions to tangible fixed assets

-/- 636,888

Deconsolidation
Currency translation differences
Net investment in financial fixed assets

-/- 728,449

–
-/-

2,715

81

-/-

6,179

Net cash outflow from investing activities

130

-/- 42,730
-/- 630,790

-/- 768,594

Financing
Dividend paid in the reporting year

-/- 45,000

-/- 45,000

Currency translation differences

-/- 10,238

24,428

Change in minority interests
Change in loans and bank credits
Net cash inflow from financing activities
Change in net cash

*

Exclusive of dividends, bank debts and loans.

477

-/-

3,174

98,152

-/-

9,011

43,391

-/- 32,757

-/- 33,656

-/- 161,165
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Accounting policies – consolidation, valuation and determination of profit

Basis of consolidation

Tangible fixed assets

Criteria for the consolidated financial statements

Tangible fixed assets for operating activities

In accordance with uniform principles, the

Tangible fixed assets for operating activities are

consolidated financial statements include the

carried at historical cost, and depreciated on a

financial information of N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol

straight-line basis over the life of the asset.

and its group companies, as listed on page 59, on
the basis of the full consolidation method. Group

Assets in the course of construction are carried at

companies are those companies that belong to

historical cost, including:

the economic entity of N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol,

construction interest on major investments; and

and in which the latter has decisive control over

hours worked by own staff during the

business and financial policy.

construction phase of investment projects.

The results of the group companies acquired in

Commercial property

the course of the year are consolidated as from

Commercial property and land leased out on a

the moment at which N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol

long lease for commercial purposes are carried at

acquired decisive control of the policy of those

current value as let property. Approximately 30%

group companies. The share of the other

of the properties in the portfolio are valued

shareholders in the group equity and the group

annually by independent surveyors, the remaining

profit is included under minority interests.

70% by in-house surveyors.

Corporate profit and loss account

Commercial property under construction is carried

The company made use of the option to prepare

at historical cost, including capitalised interest

an abbreviated corporate profit and loss account

during construction.

as provided by Section 402, Book 2 of the
Netherlands Civil Code.

Unrealised capital gains (losses) are added to the
revaluation reserve. On sale of the asset, the

Basis of valuation

realised capital gain (loss) is taken to the profit
and loss account.

Foreign currencies
Income and expense denominated in foreign

Tangible fixed assets of which the company and its

currencies are included in the profit and loss

subsidiaries are the beneficial owners pursuant to

account at the rate of settlement. Debtors, debts

a lease contract are all capitalised.

and cash denominated in foreign currencies are
converted at the rate prevailing on the balance

Reclassification

sheet date. Exchange differences are included in

Certain amounts stated for previous years have

the profit and loss account under financial items.

been reclassified in accordance with the format

Exchange differences resulting from translation of

for 2000.

net investments in foreign participating interests
are directly taken to shareholders‘ equity.

Financial fixed assets
Financial fixed assets consist of participating
interests, other financial fixed assets and other
debtors. Participating interests are carried at net
asset value. Participating interests in which the
company does not have significant influence
are carried at cost less a provision for asset
impairment, where necessary. Other financial
fixed assets are carried at the amounts at which
they were acquired. A provision for bad debt
is deducted from financial fixed assets where
necessary.
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Current assets

Basis of profit determination

Stock
In general, stock is valued at average cost. Stock

Net turnover

held for technical maintenance purposes is valued

Net turnover represents the income from goods

at nil.

delivered and services rendered less tax on
turnover. Income is recorded when the goods

Debtors

are delivered or the services rendered, costs are

Debtors are carried at face value less a provision

charged against turnover in the year in which

for bad debt where necessary.

the related turnover is posted.

Cash at bank and in hand

Depreciation

Cash at bank and in hand is carried at face value.

Tangible fixed assets for operating activities are
depreciated in accordance with the straight-line

Revaluation reserve

method, based on the depreciation schedule

Changes in value following the valuation at

below. The depreciation periods listed depend in

current value of property (including land let

part on the nature of the asset. Assets in the

on long leases) for commercial operation are

course of construction and land are not

recognised in the revaluation reserve.

depreciated. Property intended for commercial
operation is not depreciated either.

Deferred investment grants
This item concerns investment grants forming a

Depreciation periods

contribution towards the operating expenses
inherent to investments, less the release calculated

Tangible fixed assets

annually. This item is carried at face value.

Runways, taxiways and aprons

30-40 years

Land and roads
Provisions

Car parks

The provisions for early retirement are generally

Roads

carried at actuarial value; the actuarial interest

Other paved surfacing

30 years
30 years
10-30 years

rate applied is 4% (1999: 4%). The other provisions

Buildings

are mainly formed to equalise costs and are carried

Installations

5-30 years

at face value.

Other fixed assets

3-20 years

Long-term liabilities

Deferred investment grants

Amounts falling due after one year are carried at

Investment grants are taken to the profit and loss

the amount at which they were incurred.

account (under depreciation) over the life of the

20-40 years

qualifying assets.
Current liabilities
Amounts falling due within one year are carried at

Financial instruments

the amount at which they were incurred.

The company makes use of financial instruments
(i.e. derivatives) not included in the balance sheet
in order to limit the borrowing costs of the longterm loans contracted and to hedge currency
translation risks. These derivatives are interest rate
and currency swaps. The profits/losses generated
by these instruments are taken to the profit and
loss account (under financial items) in proportion
to their effects on the reporting period. If swaps
are unwound because there no longer is an
opposite position, the related income or expense
is taken directly to the profit and loss account.
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Notes to the consolidated balance sheet
(in NLG 1,000)

Assets
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
This item can be broken down as follows:

Runways,

Land

taxiways

and roads

Buildings

Installations

and aprons

Book value beginning of year
Cost
Depreciation

863,661

690,162

1,809,503

1,249,045

-/- 324,095

-/- 137,921

-/- 545,064

-/- 653,821

Book value end of year
Book value beginning of year

539,566

552,241

1,264,439

595,224

-/- 483,910

-/- 498,135

-/-1,281,135

-/- 388,789

55,656

54,106

80,579

74,852

Changes during the year

-/-

16,696

206,435

237,839

96,720

Breakdown of changes during the year
Additions
Disposals

–

Impairment

–

Recategorisation

-/-

Depreciation

12,452

-/- 11,517

–

-/-

–

–

3,406

-/- 182,905

192,308

–

–

–

-/- 22,747

-/- 16,757

-/-

59,178

-/- 71,076

55,656

54,106

-/-

16,696

206,435

Property

Property

Land

Total

1,115,434

Total changes during the year

-/-

583

–

Translation differences

2,176

-/-

Commercial property can be broken down as follows:

in operation

under
development

Book value beginning of year
Additions
Disposals for property under development
Disposals
Revaluation
Recategorisation
Book value end of year

-/-

637,193

96,862

381,379

2,114

135,014

7,000

1,680

–

–

-/-/-

–

-/-

144,128
1,680

4,835

–

129,504

–

17,211

146,715

74,684

-/- 54,420

20,264

–

841,815

172,621

385,326

1,399,762

-/-

4,835

Commercial property includes an amount of NLG 245 milllion, representing the current value of assets held under
financial leases. Land includes both land intended for future operations and land leased out on a long lease.
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Other

Assets in the

fixed

course of

Total

assets

construction

283,984

412,033

5,308,388

-/- 181,588

–

-/- 1,842,489

102,396

412,033

3,465,899

-/- 76,234

-/- 474,414

-/- 3,202,617

26,162

-/- 62,381

263,282

25,253

-/- 22,483

492,760

-/-

2,267
–

-/-

–

-/-

26,819

8,000

-/-

8,000

28,077

-/- 31,898

–

81

–

81

-/- 24,982

–

-/- 194,740

26,162

-/- 62,381

263,282
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Financial fixed assets
This item can be broken down as follows:

Participating
interests

Amounts

Other

owed by

debtors

Total

participating
interests

Book value beginning of year

164,300

Investments
Withdrawals/repayments
Profit (Loss)

2,964

6,000

173,264

1,310

–

–

1,310

–

–
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10,567

–

–

Dividend

-/-

7,350

–

–

-/-

Translation differences

-/- 10,747

–

–

-/- 10,747

158,080

2,964

6,042

167,086

Book value end of year

10,567
7,350

Current assets
Stock
Stock consists of stock for facility services and technical maintenance. Total stock value amounts
to NLG 4.9 million (1999: NLG 5.2 million). A provision was deducted from the stock value for
the purposes of writing-off the entire stock for technical maintenance.
Debtors
This item can be broken down as follows;

Trade debtors

2000

1999

208,072

130,508

Amounts owed to participants and participating interests

4,611

5,036

Other debtors

6,730

17,102

53,756

50,066

273,169

202,712

Prepayments and accrued income

Trade debtors include a provision for bad debt. Other debtors include a claim in the sum of approximately
NLG 1.6 million (1999: approx. NLG 11.1 million) in relation to taxation and social security contributions.
Cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank held by the company includes NLG 104.4 million (1999: NLG 151.2 million) in bank deposits
with maturities ranging between 1 and 12 months.
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Liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
The notes to the corporate balance sheet include a breakdown of shareholders’ equity and the changes
therein. In 2000 an amount of NLG 146.7 million was added to the shareholders’ equity due to
revaluation of commercial property (including land leased out on long leases).
Minority interests
This item refers to the minority interests in the capital of the group company Eindhoven Airport N.V.
Deferred investment grants
Movements in this item were as follows during the financial year:

Book value beginning of year
New entitlements
Release to the profit and loss account
Book value end of year

-/-

2000

1999

31,358

21,600

1,397

14,005

1,410
31,345

-/-

4,247
31,358

Provisions
Major repairs
Movements in the provision for major repairs were as follows:
Book value beginning of year
Utilisation

53,219
-/- 18,468

Additions

11,826

Book value end of year

46,577

This provision was formed to equalise the costs of major repairs in the asset categories runways, taxiways,
terminals, piers and roads.
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Early retirement
The provision for early retirement can be broken down as follows:

Occupational

Retaining pay

early

Pre-early

Total

retirement

retirement

Book value beginning of year
Utilisation
Other movements
Additions
Book value end of year

32,915

3,054

18,075

54,044

-/- 2,363

-/- 1,195

-/- 6,310

-/- 9,868

–

600

12,010

12,610

2,479

99

5,702

8,280

33,031

2,558

29,477

65,066

The amounts of the provisions for occupational early retirement and retaining pay are calculated
according to the actuarial cost method, with an actuarial interest rate of 4% (1999: 4%). The provision
for occupational early retirement comprises an amount of NLG 22.5 million for commitments relating
to future recipients of benefits (1999: NLG 23.9 million). The provision for pre-early retirement (pre-BUT)
ensues from the collective pay-and-conditions agreement adopted in April 1996, under which staff
are offered the opportunity to retire before they have reached the official early retirement age.
Other movements relates to a reclassification of the provision for restructuring in respect of employees
that retired early in 2000 as a consequence of an internal reorganisation in 1999.
Other provisions
This item can be broken down as follows:

Environ-

ICT

Lagging

mental

performance

liabilities

Lelystad

Restructuring

Other

Total

Book value
beginning of year

101,456

36,832

10,167

54,210

281

202,946

Utilisation

-/- 4,658

-/- 48,797

-/- 598

-/- 23,709

-/- 54

-/- 77,816

Release

–

–

–

–

-/- 69

Other movements

–

–

–

-/- 12,610

–

-/- 12,610

34,076

37,200

–

–

211

71,487

130,874

25,235

9,569

17,891

369

183,938

Additions

-/-

69

Book value
end of year
Environmental risks
The provision for environmental liabilities is principally a long-term provision that has partly been
formed for future asbestos and sludge clean-ups, and soil remediation. An amount of NLG 4.1 million
(1999: NLG 4.6 million) was added to this provision, while NLG 4.7 million (1999: NLG 6.2 million)
was utilised. In addition, NLG 30 million was added to the provision in the year under review in order
to mitigate the financial consequences of the underuse of the runways as a result of the environmental
restrictions imposed on the whole runway system.
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Information and communications technology (ICT)
The provision for ICT is primarily intended to equalise the cost of catching up on developments in the
ICT field, and to make the adjustments to the financial information systems required by the introduction
of the euro. It is expected that most of the provision will be utilised in 2001.
Lagging performance of Lelystad
Created in 1993, this provision arose from an obligation incurred at the take-over of the Lelystad group
company. It is used to cover future losses incurred by this group company.
Restructuring
The restructuring provision relates to expected costs resulting from a restructuring operation carried out
in 1999.
Other movements relate to a transfer to the pre-early retirement provision in connection with employees
retiring early as part of the restructuring operation.
Long-term liabilities
This item can be broken down as follows:

2000

Average

Total

% rate

Bonds and private loans

6.71

736,212

Debts to credit institutions

5.98
–

Other

Due after

1999

Total

Due after

more than

more than

5 years

5 years

180,773

536,345

214,277

33,424

0

35,290

35,290

43,192

43,192

5,287

4,731

812,828

223,965

576,922

254,298

In 1999 the Schiphol Group launched the euro medium-term note (EMTN) programme, which allows
the group to issue up to EUR 500 million (NLG 1.1 billion) in bonds over the next few years. In 2000 the
group made use of this programme for the first time, raising EUR 220 million on notes with maturities
of up to two years, in order to redeem a bond loan of NLG 400 million.
The other amounts falling due after one year concern a lump-sum payment received in 1999 for a long
lease. This payment will be released to the profit and loss account over the term of the lease.
The amounts to be repaid in the next financial year, totalling NLG 313.1 million, are included in the
balance sheet under creditors: amounts falling due within one year.
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Current liabilities
This item can be broken down as follows:

2000

1999

313,038

450,796

355

351

222,283

226,377

59

–

Taxation and social charges

6,949

2,406

Pension obligations

1,904

1,282

Other creditors

119,541

109,834

Accruals and deferred income

223,721

140,761

887,850

931,807

Instalments on loans falling due within one year
Bank loans
Trade creditors
Amounts owed to participants and participating interests

The 7-year bond loan of NLG 400 million issued in 1993, which was carried in 1999 as an amount falling
due within one year, was paid off in its entirety.
Contingencies and commitments not included in the balance sheet
In addition to the liabilities included in the balance sheet, the company has the following commitments:

2000

1999

Additions to fixed assets

325,200

211,000

Operating leases

121,165

143,987

20,600

21,157

10,000

10,000

1,792

1,569

478,757

387,713

Commitments:

Subsidies and other contributions to third parties
Guarantees issued to third parties for:
loans contracted
loans contracted by staff and other guarantees

Operating leases include the commitments relating to a car park. The item subsidies and other
contributions includes NLG 18.7 million relating to a financial contribution within the framework of the
Uitwerkingsplan Mainport en Groen development plan, spread over the years 2006 up to and including
2009. This item also includes NLG 1.9 million for the Schiphol Fund. In 2000 a currency swap agreement
was concluded to the amount of USD 25 million to hedge exchange risks on long-term loans. The swap
will mature in July 2002.

Notes to the consolidated profit and loss account
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(in NLG 1,000)

Net turnover
Net turnover can be broken down by operating activities as follows:

2000

1999

Airport fees

689,250

632,152

Concessions

253,053

255,006

Rents and leases

187,465

159,500

Utility services

33,998

32,768

Other activities

240,671

188,045

1,404,437

1,267,471

Operating income was generated mainly in the Netherlands. Income from other activities primarily relates
to car parking fees, services and activities charged on, and advertising.
Own work capitalised
Own work capitalised relates to construction interest due on major and commercial investments and
to internal staff hours, which are capitalised in the construction phase of investment projects.

Capitalised staff hours
Capitalised interest

2000

1999

9,613

13,329

10,713

12,605

20,326

25,934

2000

1999

155,557

139,354

37,979

38,864

Costs of work contracted out and other third-party charges
This item can be broken down as follows:

Work contracted out
Energy purchased
Maintenance
Other third-party charges

68,918

70,859

188,815

182,200

451,269

431,277

Maintenance includes the addition of NLG 11.8 million (1999: NLG 17.0 million) to the provision for
major repairs.
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Salaries and social charges

Wages and salaries

2000

1999

184,489

174,578

Pension costs

15,743

14,105

Social charges

19,864

19,799

220,096

208,482

The average number of employees (converted into full-time equivalents) of the Schiphol Group and
its subsidiaries is 1,864 (1999: 1,868).
The remuneration of directors (including former directors) and supervisory directors pursuant to
Section 383 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code amounted to NLG 2,584,000 and NLG 510,000,
respectively (1999: NLG 1,917,000 and NLG 370,000).

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

2000

1999

Runways, taxiways and aprons

22,747

21,433

Land and roads

16,757

18,310

Buildings

59,178

53,876

Installations

71,076

53,193

Other fixed assets

24,981

23,301

Additional depreciation in relation to disposals
Additional depreciation in relation to impairment

Released deferred investment grants

194,739

170,113

26,819

6,708

8,000

–

229,558

176,821

-/- 1,411

-/- 4,247

228,147

172,574

Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses include NLG 79.9 million (1999: NLG 59.5 million) in respect of net allocations
to provisions (allocation less release). For further information about the allocations, please consult the
notes to the balance sheet.
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Financial items

2000

Interest income
Interest expense

1999

4,872

6,574

-/- 71,751

-/- 67,087

Other financial items

64
-/- 66,815

-/-

-/- 62,049

Taxation
This item relates to tax on income from foreign participating interests. N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol
and most of its subsidiaries are exempt from corporate income tax by law.
Share in income from participating interests
This item states the share in income contributed by unconsolidated participating interests.
As a result of local legislation and regulations, the principal entities are exempt from profit tax.
Extraordinary expenses
Extraordinary expenses for 2000 include NLG 35 million in costs incurred to prepare for the group’s
privatisation, as well as NLG 5 million for a penalty imposed by the Minister for Transport and
Water Management for breaking noise limits at some measuring points.
The extraordinary expenses for 1999 included the allocation made to the restructuring provision.
Schiphol, 22 February 2001
For the 2000 consolidated financial statements:
Supervisory Board
R.J. Nelissen, chairman
P.J. Kalff, vice-chairman
H. van den Broek
G.D. Dales
A. van Es
J.M. Hessels
J. Kremers
G.H.O. van Maanen
S. Patijn
H.J. Simons
T.H. Woltman
Board of Management
G.J. Cerfontaine, Chairman of the Board of Management
M.E. van Lier Lels, Member of the Board of Management/Chief Operational Officer
P.M. Verboom, Member of the Board of Management/Chief Financial Officer
R. Uijlenhoet, Member of the Board of Management

1,536
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Corporate balance sheet for the year ended 31 December 2000

(after profit appropriation)

(in NLG 1,000)

Assets
31 December 2000

31 December 1999

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets for operating activities

3,273,606

3,037,233

Financial fixed assets

1,493,780

1,189,321
4,767,386

4,226,554

Current assets
Stock
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

4,861

5,053

253,474

264,915

98,279

145,297
356,614

415,265

5,124,000

4,641,819
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Liabilities
31 December 2000

31 December 1999

Shareholders’ equity
Issued capital

171,255

171,255

Revaluation reserve

599,763

456,060

10,200

7,500

Statutory reserve for participating interests
Reserve for translation differences
Other reserves

-/- 11,995

-/-

2,632,682

1,757

2,368,613

Deferred investment grants

3,401,905

3,001,671

24,421

26,561

Provisions
Major repairs

42,716

49,081

Early retirement

64,867

54,044

Other provisions

169,489

192,016
277,072

295,141

Long-term liabilities

611,212

416,632

Current liabilities

809,390

901,814

5,124,000

4,641,819

Corporate profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2000
(in NLG 1,000)

Operating profit
Share in income from participating interests
Extraordinary items
Net profit

-/-

2000

1999

269,003

275,345

87,766

69,047

40,000
316,769

-/-

64,250
280,142
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Notes to the corporate balance sheet and profit and loss account
(in NLG 1,000)

General
The accounting policies in respect of valuation and profit determination are the same as those followed
for the consolidated balance sheet and profit and loss account. Reference is made, therefore, to the
notes to the consolidated accounts. Notes to the corporate accounts have only been included if they
differ materially from those to the consolidated accounts.
Financial fixed assets
This item can be broken down as follows:

Group

Amounts

Other

Amounts

Other

companies

owed by

participating

owed by

debtors

group

interests

companies

Total

other
participating
interests

Book value
beginning of year

859,921

285,172

35,270

2,958

6,000

1,189,321

Investments

135,183

–

1,310

–

42

136,535

–

-/- 50,945

–

–

–

-/- 50,945

82,725

–

5,041

–

–

87,766

Withdrawals and repayments
Profit (Loss)
Dividend

-/-

255

Translation differences

-/-

8,814

Other changes

1,853

–

–

-/-

4,486

–

–

–

–

-/- 13,300

146,511

–

–

–

–

146,511

1,215,271

229,741

39,768

2,958

6,042

1,493,780

Total

-/-

-/-

2,108

Shareholders’ equity
Movements in shareholders’ equity can be broken down as follows:

Balance beginning of year
Revaluation

Issued

Revaluation

Statutory

Reserve

Other

capital

reserve

reserve for

for

reserves

participating

translation

interests

differences

171,255

456,060

7,500

–

146,715

–

-/-

1,757

2,368,613

3,001,671

–

–

146,715

4,020

–

262,749

266,769

1,320

-/- 10,238

1,320

-/- 13,250

10,200

-/- 11,995

2,632,682

3,401,905

Addition from 2000
profit appropriation

–

Movements

–

Balance end of year

171,255

–
-/-

3,012
599,763

-/-
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Issued capital
Shareholders:
The State of the Netherlands

129,880

75.8%

The City of Amsterdam

37,276

21.8%

The City of Rotterdam

4,099

2.4%

171,255

100.0%

The authorised capital is NLG 300,000,000 divided into 300,000 shares of NLG 1,000 each.
Revaluation reserve
This item relates to the revaluation reserves for commercial property and participating interests.
The former concerns unrealised increases in value of the commercial property (including land leased
out on long leases).
Statutory reserve for participating interests
The reserve was debited to the sum of NLG 1,320,000 in respect of dividend distributions by participating
interests. These are added to the other reserves.
Reserve for translation differences
The reserve for translation differences shows the exchange differences resulting from the translation
of net investments in foreign participating interests.
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Contingencies and commitments not included in the balance sheet
We refer to the notes to the consolidated balance sheet, in which this item is broken down. The company
filed a declaration of assumption of liability as referred to in Section 403 of Book 2 of the Netherlands
Civil Code, for a number of group companies (see p. 59, Overview of participating interests). In addition,
the company has assumed joint and several liability for the debts of V.O.F. Proefdraaiplaats Holding 27.
Schiphol, 22 February 2001
For the 2000 corporate financial statements:
Supervisory Board
R.J. Nelissen, chairman
P.J. Kalff, vice-chairman
H. van den Broek
G.D. Dales
A. van Es
J.M. Hessels
J. Kremers
G.H.O. van Maanen
S. Patijn
H.J. Simons
T.H. Woltman
Board of Management
G.J. Cerfontaine, Chairman of the Board of Management
M.E. van Lier Lels, Member of the Board of Management/Chief Operational Officer
P.M. Verboom, Member of the Board of Management/Chief Financial Officer
R. Uijlenhoet, Member of the Board of Management

O ther information
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Profit appropriation according to the articles of association
Article 25 of the company’s articles of association contains the following provisions on profit appropriation:
1

Without prejudice to the provisions of Section 105, Book 2, of the Netherlands Civil Code, the profit
pursuant to the approved financial statements is reserved, unless the General Meeting of Shareholders
resolves to make profit distributions.

2

Subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board of a proposal presented by the Board of
Management, the General Meeting of Shareholders decides on the appropriation of the amounts
thus reserved.

Proposed profit appropriation
(in NLG 1,000)

Profit

316,769

With due observance of Article 25 of the articles of association,
it is proposed to appropriate the profit for the year as follows:
Addition to the statutory reserve for participating interests

-/-

4,020

Dividend to be distributed

-/- 50,000

312,749

Addition to the other reserves
This proposal has been recognised in these financial statements.

262,749
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Auditor’s report

Introduction
We have audited the 2000 financial statements of N.V. Luchthaven Schiphol, Schiphol as included in this
report. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
Scope
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Netherlands.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company
as at December 31, 2000 and of the result for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the Netherlands and comply with the financial reporting requirements
included in Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code.
Amsterdam, 22 February 2001
PricewaterhouseCoopers N.V.

Overview of participating interests

Group companies
Schiphol Belgium N.V.
Schiphol Australia Pty Ltd.
Schiphol North America Holding Inc.
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Registered office

% share

Antwerp

100

Brisbane

100

Delaware

100

Eindhoven Airport N.V.

Eindhoven

51

Schiphol Asia Sdn. Bhd.

Kuala Lumpur

100

Lelystad

100

N.V. Luchthaven Lelystad
Avioport SpA
Schiphol USA Inc.
Rotterdam Airport B.V.

1)

Rotterdam Airport Supplies Services B.V.

Lonate Pozzolo

70

New York

100

Rotterdam

100

Rotterdam

100

Balnag B.V.

Schiphol

100

Brisbane Airport Real Estate B.V

Schiphol

100

Facility Management Schiphol B.V.

Schiphol

100

Malpensa Real Estate B.V.

Schiphol
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Oneport B.V.

Schiphol

100

Schiphol Caravelle B.V.

Schiphol

100

Schiphol

100

Schiphol

100

Schiphol

100

Schiphol Real Estate Logistics Park B.V.

Schiphol

100

Schiphol Real Estate B.V.

Schiphol

100

Schiphol Dienstverlening B.V.
Schiphol International B.V.

1)

1)

Schiphol Project Consult B.V.

1)

1)

Schiphol Real Estate Eindhoven B.V.

Schiphol

100

Schiphol Real Estate Eindhoven Finance B.V.

Schiphol

100

Schiphol Real Estate Eindhoven II B.V.

Schiphol

100

Schiphol Real Estate International B.V.

Schiphol

100

Schiphol Tristar B.V.

Schiphol

100

Schiphol

100

Schiphol

100

Schiphol Utility Services B.V.

1)

Schiphol Utility Network B.V.

1)

Fricla B.V.

Utrecht

100

Luchthaven Schiphol Management Dienste GmbH

Vienna

100

Beijing

331/3

Brisbane

15.82

Flight Forum Beheer B.V.

Eindhoven

50

Flight Forum C.V.

Eindhoven

49

Other participating interests
Beijing GSA Aviation Business Management Corporation Ltd.
Brisbane Airport Corporation Ltd.

P.T. Angkasa Pura Schiphol

Jakarta

50

New York

40

Flight Square Beheer B.V.

Schiphol

50

Flight Square C.V.

Schiphol

50

Beheer Personeelsrestaurant Schiphol B.V.

Schiphol

50

Joint venture JFK IAT

Cargonaut B.V.

Schiphol

37

Lijnden Quality Park B.V.

Schiphol

25

Schiphol Area Development Company N.V.

Schiphol

25

Schiphol Logistics Park B.V.

Schiphol

45

Schiphol Telematics B.V.

Schiphol

331/3

V.O.F. Proefdraaiplaats Holding 27

Schiphol

50

Vienna

1

Flughafen Wien AG

1)

Section 403 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code has been applied.
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Ten-year summary
(in EUR 1,000, 1 € is NLG 2.20371)
Historical figures have been adjusted to the current accounting policies.
2000

1999

€

€

Net turnover

637

575

Other income

10

11

647

586

Profit and loss account

Total operating income
Total operating expenses before
depreciation/amortisation

-/-

EBITDA

356

-/-

291

Depreciation/amortisation

-/-

Operating profit

103

256
-/-

188

Financial items

-/-

30

330

78
178

-/-

28

Taxation and share of operating
results of participating interests

4

Profit on ordinary activities
Extraordinary items

162
-/-

Net profit

6

18

156
-/-

29

144

127

2.284

2,038

187

171

Total assets

2,471

2,209

Shareholders’ equity

1,544

1,362

Provisions

134

141

Long-term liabilities

390

283

Current liabilities

403

423

2,471

2,209

251

290

29.6

30.9

Balance sheet
Fixed assets
Current assets

Total liabilities
Operating cash flow

1)

Ratios
Operating result as a % of net turnover
Interest coverage ratio

6.2

6.3

Return on average equity

9.9

9.8

RONA

8.7

9.4

9.0

9.4

Interest bearing debt/total liabilities

0.21

0.21

Earnings per share

839

742

1,468

1,696

133

119

1,864

1,868

ROCE

2)

3)
4)

Per-share information
Operating cash flow per share
Dividend per share
Personnel
Average effective workforce
in full-time equivalents
1) Please refer to the cash flow statement for a breakdown of this item.
2) Interest coverage ratio: Operating profit (loss) / net financial items.
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1998

-/-

-/-

1997

1995

1994

1993

1992

1991

€

€

€

€

€

€

€

€

553

504

446

401

370

387

344

300

11

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

564

504

446

401

370

387

344

300

303

-/- 281

261

223

80

-/-

181
-/-

1996

26

77

-/-

-/-

200
-/-

146
-/-

246

71

222

-/-

179
-/-

129

68

30

-/-

119
-/-

111
-/-

251

27

25

-/-

147
-/-

92
-/-

240

57

31

-/-

136
-/-

90
-/-

208

58

108
-/-

78
-/-

21

192

48
60

20

-/-

29

-/-

3

2

-/-

5

1

1

0

158

128

95

82

68

59

0

0

0

0

0

0

158

128

95

82

68

59

54

41

1,748

1,548

1,390

1,324

1,232

1,140

1,047

897

253

228

220

143

164

150

60

46

2,001

1,776

1,610

1,467

1,396

1,290

1,107

943

1,223

1,080

955

844

761

671

624

554

0

0

57
-/-

3

18

42
-/-

1

99

83

59

49

54

67

69

57

479

465

456

461

457

428

233

205

200

148

140

113

124

124

181

127

2,001

1,776

1,610

1,467

1,396

1,290

1,107

943

283

237

190

115

144

115

112

88

32.7

29.0

29.0

27.7

24.9

23.2

22.7

19.9

7.0

7.3

4.4

3.7

3.6

2.8

3.7

3.5

13.7

12.6

10.6

10.2

9.5

9.0

9.2

7.7

11.0

9.9

9.5

8.7

7.8

8.2

8.0

7.2

10.5

9.4

9.1

8.4

7.5

8.6

9.0

8.0

0.23

0.26

0.29

0.31

0.33

0.34

0.21

0.22

923

750

556

480

398

342

318

239

1,653

1,383

1,110

673

840

673

654

517

119

93

66

41

41

41

27

27

1,928

1,791

1,717

1,687

2,151

2,187

2,169

2,187

3) Return on net assets (RONA): Operating profit (loss) / average fixed assets.
4) Return on capital employed (ROCE): Operating profit (loss) / (average liabilities less non-interest bearing short-term loans).
.
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Consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2000 (after profit appropriation)
Assets
31 December 2000

31 December 1999

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
for operating activities
Commercial property

1,572,756

1,453,284

635,185

506,162

Financial fixed assets

2,207,941

1,959,446

75,820

78,624

2,283,761

2,038,070

Current assets
Stock
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

2,243

2,340

123,959

91,987

61,171

76,443
187,373

170,770

2,471,134

2,208,840
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Liabilities
31 December 2000

31 December 1999

1,543,717

1,362,099

Shareholders’ equity
Minority interests
Deferred investment grants

7,330

7,113

14,224

14,230

Provisions
Major repairs

21,136

24,150

Early retirement

29,526

24,524

Other provisions

83,467

92,093
134,129

140,767

Long-term liabilities

368,845

261,796

Current liabilities

402,889

422,835

2,471,134

2,208,840

63

64

Consolidated profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2000
(in EUR 1,000, 1 € is NLG 2.20371)

2000

1999

637,306

575,153

9,223

11,769

Total operating income

646,529

586,922

Costs of work contracted out and other third-party charges

204,777

195,705

Net turnover
Own work capitalised

Salaries and social charges

99,875

94,605

103,529

78,311

Other operating expenses

50,043

40,297

Total operating expenses

458,224

408,918

Depreciation/amortisation and movements in value

Operating profit
Financial items

188,305
-/-

Profit (Loss) from ordinary activities before taxation
Taxation

18,151

329
143,744

314
6,762
156,295

-/-

144,073
-/-

28,157
149,847

-/-

162,224
-/-

Group profit (loss) after taxation

Net profit

557
4,795

Profit (Loss) from ordinary activities after taxation

Minority interests

178,004
-/-

157,986
-/-

Share of operating results of participating interests

Extraordinary items

30,319

29,155
127,140

-/-

16
127,124

Consolidated cash flow statement
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(in EUR 1,000, 1 € is NLG 2.20371)

Net profit

2000

1999

143,744

127,123

Add (Less):
Depreciation/amortisation
Sale of assets
Disposals for assets under construction
Release of negative goodwill

78,311

2,194

–

762

–

-/-

1,367
634

6,355

-/-

6,637

41,782

8,419

38,300

Addition to deferred investment grants
Movements in provisions

103,529

-/-

1,367

Net movements in stock,
debtors and current liabilities*

Net cash inflow from operating activities

107,534

163,381

251,278

290,504

Additions and investments
Additions to tangible fixed assets

-/- 289,007

Deconsolidation
Currency translation differences

-/- 303,556

–
-/-

Net investment in financial fixed assets

1,232

37

-/-

2,804

Net cash outflow from investing activities

59

-/- 19,390

-/- 286,240

-/- 348,773

Financing
Dividend paid in the reporting year

-/- 20,420

Currency translation differences

-/-

Change in minority interests
Change in loans and bank credits
Net cash inflow from financing activities
Change in net cash

*

Exclusive of dividends, bank debts and loans.

-/- 20,420

4,646

11,085

216

-/-

1,440

44,540

-/-

4,089

19,690

-/- 14,864

-/- 15,272

-/- 73,133
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Appendices
Appendix 1a
Traffic and transport at Amsterdam Schiphol

2000

1999

Change
compared
with 1999
as a %

Passengers
(excl. transit-direct)
Transit-direct passengers
Air cargo (in tonnes)
Air mail (in tonnes)

39,270,610

36,425,113

336,315

346,902

+

7.8

1,222,594

1,180,717

+

3.6

44,792

44,567

+

0.5

-/- 3.1

Air transport movements

414,928

393,606

+

5.4

Other aircraft movements

17,555

16,393

+

7.1

+

5.5

Total aircraft movements

432,483

409,999

2000

1999

Appendix 1b
Traffic and transport Rotterdam Airport
(source: CBS)

Change
compared
with 1999
as a %

Passengers
(excl. Transit-direct)
Air cargo (in tonnes)

696,612

607,167

+ 14.7

782

1,602

-/- 51.2

Air transport movements

24,806

22,305

+ 11.2

Other aircraft movements

88,518

85,330

+

3.7

+

5.3

Total aircraft movements

113,324

107,635
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Appendix 1c
Traffic and transport Eindhoven Airport
(source: CBS)

2000

1999

Change
compared
with 1999
as a %

Passengers
(excl. Transit-direct)
Air cargo (in tonnes)

340,964

288,575

65

219

+

18.2

-/- 70.3

Air transport movements

16,191

14,449

+

Other aircraft movements

7,103

10,690

-/- 33.6

Total aircraft movements

23,294

25,139

2000

1999

12.1

-/-

7.3

Appendix 1d
Traffic and transport Lelystad Airport
(source: CBS)

Change
compared
with 1999
as a %

Total aircraft movements

136,423

145,230

2000

1999

-/-

6.1

Appendix 1e
Traffic and transport Terminal 4 JFK

Change
compared
with 1999
as a %

Passengers
(excl. Transit-direct)
Air cargo (in tonnes)
Air transport movements
Other aircraft movements
Total aircraft movements

5,219,637

4,642,418

N.A.

N.A.

29,151

25,814

N.A.

N.A.
29,151

+ 12.4

+ 12.9

25,814

+ 12.9
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Appendix 1f
Traffic and transport Brisbane Airport

2000

1999

Change
compared
with 1999
as a %

Passengers
(excl. Transit-direct)
Air cargo (in tonnes)

11,606,491

10,717,000

N.A.

N.A.

Air transport movements

133,358

130,184

Other aircraft movements

32,930

28,714

Total aircraft movements

N.A. = Not Applicable/Not Available.

166,288

+

8.3

+

2.4

+ 14.7
158,898

+

4.7
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Appendix II
Comparison of the 10 major Western European airports
Air transport movements
(x 1,000)

2000

1999

Change
compared
with 1999
as a %

1 London1)

858.7

832.1

+ 3.2

2 Paris2)

747.5

708.1

+ 5.6

3 Frankfurt

441.6

421.3

+ 4.8

4 Amsterdam

414.9

393.6

+

5.4

5 Madrid

357.6

305.7

+ 17.0

6 Milan4)

313.3

285.8

+ 9.6

7 Rome3)

306.8

272.8

+ 12.5

8 Brussels

304.9

292.6

+ 4.2

9 Copenhagen

299.7

295.1

+ 1.6

290.9

270.1

+ 7.7

1999

Change

10 Zurich

Share of Amsterdam Schiphol: 9.6% (1999: 9.7%).
Passengers movements (transit-direct counted once)
(x 1,000)

2000

compared
with 1999
as a %

1 London1)
2 Paris

2)

3 Frankfurt

108,543

102,275

+ 6.1

73,641

68,946

+ 6.8

49,340

45,870

+ 7.6

4 Amsterdam

39,607

36,772

+ 7.7

5 Madrid

32,828

27,532

+ 19.2

6 Rome

3)

27,109

24,715

+ 9.7

7 Milan4)

26,743

23,604

+ 13.3

8 Munich

23,126

21,283

+ 8.7

9 Zurich

22,627

20,875

+ 8.4

10 Brussels

21,599

19,932

+ 8.4

Share of Amsterdam Schiphol 9.3% (1999: 9.4%).

1)

Heathrow, Gatwick and Stansted.

2)

Charles de Gaulle and Orly.

3)

Fiumicino and Ciampino.

4)

Malpensa and Linate.
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Air cargo
(x 1,000 tonnes)

2000

1999

Change
compared
with 1999
as a %

1

London1)

1,795.4

1,740.1

+

3.2

2

Frankfurt

1,573.2

1,404.6

+ 12.0

3

Paris2)

1,386.7

1,227.7

+ 12.9

4

Amsterdam

1,222.6

1,180.7

+

3.5

5

Brussels

674.4

642.7

+

4.9

6

Luxembourg

499.9

447.4

+ 11.7

7

Cologne

423.6

390.8

+

8

Zurich

395.1

356.6

+ 10.8

9

Madrid

308.9

294.4

+

Milan

300.8

269.1

+ 11.8

10

4)

Share of Amsterdam Schiphol 14.2% (1999: 14.8%).

1)

Heathrow, Gatwick and Stansted.

2)

Charles de Gaulle and Orly.

3)

Fiumicino and Ciampino.

4)

Malpensa and Linate.

8.4
4.9
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Appendix III
Scheduled airlines at Amsterdam Schiphol
as at 31 December 2000

Passengers/cargo airlines

Cargo airlines

1

Adria Airways

42

KLM

1

Asiana

2

Aer Lingus

43

KLM Alps (AU)

2

Dragonair

3

Aeroflot

44

KLM Alps (CH)

3

Emirates

4

Air ALM

45

KLM cityhopper

4

Fedex

5

Air Canada

46

KLM exel

5

Nippon Cargo Airlines

6

Air France

47

KLM uk

6

Polar Air Cargo

7

Air Malta

48

Korean Airlines

7

TMA of Lebanon

8

Airzena

49

Kuwait Airways

9

Alitalia

50

Libyan Arab Airlines

10

Armenian Airlines

51

Lithuanian Airlines

11

Aurigny Air Services

52

LOT Polish Airlines

12

Austrian Airlines

53

Lufthansa

13

Balkan Bulgarian Airlines

54

Lufthansa CityLine

14

Braathens

55

Macedonian Airlines

15

British Airways

56

Maersk Air

16

British Airways

57

Malaysia Airlines

(Maersk Air Ltd )

58

Malev Hungarian Airlines

17

British Midland Airways

59

Martinair Holland

18

Cathay Pacific Airways

60

Meridiana

19

China Airlines

61

Northwest Airlines

20

China Southern Airlines

62

Olympic Airways

21

CityFlyer Express

63

PIA Pakistan International

22

Continental Airlines

64

Pulkovo Airlines

23

Croatia Airlines

65

Regional Airlines

24

Crossair

66

Royal Air Maroc

25

Cyprus Airways

67

Royal Jordanian

26

Czech Airlines

68

Sabena

27

Delta Air Lines

69

SAS Scandinavian Airlines

28

Easy Jet

70

Scot Airways

29

Egypt Air

71

Singapore Airlines

30

El-Al

72

Surinam Airways

31

Eurowings

73

Swissair

32

EVA Air

74

Syrian Arab Airlines

33

Finnair

75

T.H.Y.

34

Garuda Indonesia

76

TACV Cabo Verde

35

Gandalf

77

TAP Air Portugal

36

Iberia

78

Tarom

37

Icelandair

79

Transavia Airlines

38

Iran Air

80

Tunis Air

39

Japan Airlines

81

Ukraine International Airlines

40

JAT Jougoslav Air Transport

82

United Airlines

41

Kenya Airways

83

Uzbekistan Airways
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Glossary

Airport Fees

Fifth Runway

Charges to airlines for takeoffs, landings and aircraft parking,

Amsterdam Airport Schiphol’s new runway, the construction

and passenger fees.

of which began in 2000. It will run parallel to runway
01L-19R.

BASS
Automated Baggage Handling System of Amsterdam Airport

FTEs

Schiphol.

Full-time equivalents; the number of jobs calculated into full
working weeks.

Chapter 2 Aircraft
Jet aircraft that meet the certification standards of Chapter 2,

IATA Ranking

Annex 16 of the International Civil Aviation Organisation

A list in which the International Air Transport Association

(ICAO) guidelines. This is now the noisiest category of aircraft,

(IATA) ranks all airports according to quality.

and will not be permitted to fly within the European Union
after April 2002.

JFK Terminal 4
Terminal at John F. Kennedy Airport in New York,

Chapter 3 Aircraft

reconstructed and managed by the JFKIAT consortium,

Jet aircraft that meet the certification standards of Chapter 3,

in which Schiphol USA has a 40% interest.

Annex 16 of the ICAO guidelines. This is at the moment the
quietest category of aircraft.

Kosten Unit (KU)
A measurement in the Netherlands used to determine noise

Concession Income

impact by aircraft on an annual basis; named after its creator,

Income from activities derived from a concession; that is,

Prof. Kosten (Kosteneenheid or Ke).

a permit to carry out specific activities such as operating
a restaurant or shop.

LAeq
Total average noise level over a specified period, expressed

Crosswind Criteria

in dB(A).

Criteria for the allocation of runways.
LVB Building
Euro Medium-Term Note

Building previously used by Air Traffic Control the

Certificate of debt that can be distributed in a variety of

Netherlands (Luchtverkeersleiding Nederland).

currencies and for which the expiration date is determined
together with the bank concerned.

Mainport
A hub for air, road, and rail connections which serves as a

Fraport

home base for airline alliances and radiates a strong economic

The new name for Flughafen Frankfurt/Main AG.

influence on its surroundings.
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Meditation Center

Slot

A place of prayer and meditation at Amsterdam Airport

Permit to take off or land at “slot controlled” airports, such as

Schiphol for people of all creeds.

Amsterdam Schiphol. Airlines with no slots accorded to them
may not use these airports.

Noise Zone
Area within which physical planning limitations apply

Tax-exempt bonds

concerning housing construction and insulation. Outside this

Bonds issued for the purpose of investing in the

area, aircraft noise may not exceed specific limits. At present,

reconstruction of JFK International Airport; on the received

Amsterdam Airport Schiphol has two noise zones; the 35-KU

interest no tax has to be paid.

zone for the full 24-hour period and the 26-LAeq dB(A) zone
for the nighttime.

Terminal
Airport building, including the arrival and departure halls.

OLS
Underground Logistics System – Plan for automated

South Tangent

underground transportation of time-critical goods between

High-quality bus service, for which the first phase of

the Aalsmeer Flower Auction Center and Amsterdam

construction (between Haarlem-Schalkwijk and Schiphol-

Schiphol’s Cargo Area (Ondergronds Logistiek Systeem).

North) is currently underway (Zuidtangent).

Operations Plan

Transfer Passenger

A plan that Amsterdam Airport Schiphol must draw up

A passenger who lands at an airport to change planes.

each year, in which it indicates how it plans to handle the
predicted supply of air traffic in the coming year, within

Transit-direct Passenger

the current noise zones. The Minister of Transport, Public

A passenger who lands at an airport and then continues on in

Works and Water Management must approve this plan

the same aircraft.

(Gebruiksplan).

Pantares
Name of the alliance between Schiphol Group and Fraport.

Pre-ordering
Ordering goods and services at home by Internet.

ROZ/IPD Index
Dutch index for determining the value of real estate.

SADC
Schiphol Area Development Company; a cooperative effort
between the Province of North Holland, the Municipalities of
Amsterdam and Haarlemmermeer, Schiphol Group, and the
National Investment Bank to develop and rent out industrial
grounds around Schiphol.

See Buy Fly
A cooperative effort between Schiphol Group and
shopkeepers in the terminal at Amsterdam Schiphol.

Schiphol Plaza
Central entrance hall/railway station/public shopping center
in the terminal at Amsterdam Schiphol.

73

74

2000 annual report Schiphol Group

Colophon
Published by
Schiphol Group
P.O. Box 7501
1118 ZG Schiphol
The Netherlands
Telephone: +31 20 601 9111
www.schiphol.nl
To obtain more copies contact:
0900 - Schiphol (72 44 74 465)
Editing
Van Hulzen Public Relations Adviseurs
Corporate Communications & Public Affairs
Design
Keja Donia Design
Photography
Lex Verspeek
Lithography and printing
PlantijnCasparie Capelle aan den IJssel

